ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 5, 2002
8:10 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Coghill, Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 498

"An Act expressing legislative intent regarding privately
operated correctional facility space and services; relating to
t he devel opnent and financing of privately operated correctional
facility space and services; authorizing the Departnent of
Corrections to enter into an agreenent for the confinenent and
care of prisoners in privately operated correctional facility
space; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 498

SHORT TI TLE: WHI TTI ER PRI VATE PRI SON
SPONSOR(S):  FI NANCE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 20/ 02 2342 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 20/ 02 2342 (H STA, FIN

02/ 28/ 02 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 28/ 02 (H Heard & Held

02/ 28/ 02 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 02 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 5, 2002



FRANK PREW TT, Consult ant

Cor nel I Conpani es

8500 Upper Huffrman Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99516

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to
questions during discussion of HB 498.

MARVI N W EBE, Senior Vice President

Cornel |l Conpani es

1700 West Loop South, Suite 1500

Houst on, Texas 77027

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided comments and responded to
guestions during discussion of HB 498.

VI CTOR VELLI NGTON, Sr., WMayor

Met | akatl a | ndi an Conmunity

P.O. Box 8

Met | akatl a, Al aska 99926

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified
that Metlakatla is also interested in having a prison.

ELSI E HENDRI X, Vi ce President

Kenai Native Association

215 Fi dal go Avenue

Kenai, Al aska 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified in
support of having a prison in Wittier.

JAMES PRI CE

P. O Box 7043

Kenai, Al aska 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified in
opposition to having any publicly funded private prison anywhere
in Al aska.

VALERI E Mc CANDLESS

P. 0. Box 2238

W angel |, Al aska 99929

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified
that she preferred not to have private prisons in Al aska.

SHARI M ETHE

P. O Box 963
Wangel |, Al aska 99929

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 5, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified

against legislation that wll incur |ong-range expense and
export mllions of dollars out of state.
KEVI N WYATT

(No address provided)

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Suggested changes to the |anguage of HB
498.

M CHAEL YOURKOWSKI, City Council Menber

City of Honer

491 East Pi oneer Avenue

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, nentioned
alternative bills and recomend that a conpetent analysis be
done.

GECRGE AVI LA

P. 0. Box 872379

Wasilla, Al aska 99687

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 498, nentioning alternative
bills and accessibility issues relating to the proposed facility
in Wittier.

JI M LECROVNE, Retired Corrections Sergeant;

Retired Air Force Pilot and Parachuti st

6010 Staedem Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99504

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified
about his concerns regarding the proposed prison's readi ness for
t sunam s and aval anches.

LEONARD JONES, Director

Public Facilities

Cty of Whittier

P. 0. Box 608

Whittier, Alaska 99693

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded coments and responded to previous
testinmony during discussion of HB 498.

DAVI D KATZEEK

Juneau Al aska Native Brotherhood (ANB) Canp 2
6590 d aci er H ghway, Number 129

Juneau, Al aska 99801

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 5, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified in
support of the opportunities in private prisons to restore and
rehabilitate people who are incarcerated.

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyi st

for AFL-C O

710 West Ninth Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified on
behal f of the public enployees sector of the AFL-CIO in support
of expanding existing facilities.

CHARLES CAMPBELL

3020 Dougl as Hi ghway

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 498, testified
that the proposal in HB 498 is not a tenable one.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-22, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:10 a.m Representati ves Janes,

Fate, Stevens, Crawford, and Coghill were present at the call to
order. Representative Hayes arrived as the neeting was in
progr ess. [ For the overview on actuarials and the Division of

Retirement and Benefits, see the 9:25 a.m mnutes for this
date. ]

HB 498-WH TTI ER PRI VATE PRI SON

[ Contains nmention of HB 388, SB 231, SB 261, and SB 336]
Number 0075

CHAI R COGHI LL announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE BI LL
NO. 498, "An Act expressing legislative intent regarding
privately operated correctional facility space and services;
relating to the devel opment and financing of privately operated
correctional facility space and services; authorizing the
Department of Corrections to enter into an agreenent for the
confinement and <care of prisoners in privately operated
correctional facility space; and providing for an effective
date."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 5, 2002



Nunmber 0158

FRANK PREW TT, Consultant, Cornell Conpanies, cane forward to
testify. A former [conmssioner] wth the Departnent of
Corrections under Governors Sheffield, Cowper, and Hickel, M.
Prewitt noted that Marvin Webe, the senior vice president of

Cornell Conpanies, was available online to answer questions
regarding Cornell Conpanies - the contractor in the Wittier
prison - and about the "quality of the delivery of private

correctional services."

MR PREWTT noted that he hinself would address severa

guestions asked at the prior hearing on HB 498 [February 28,
2002] . The first was a question by Representative Hayes
concer ni ng procurenent. M. Prewitt noted that under state |aw
there are two ways the Departnent of Corrections can acquire
private correctional services in Al aska: the departnment could
i ssue an RFP [request for proposals] under the state procurenent
code and, through a conpetitive bid process, secure private
prison services in Alaska; in the alternative, the departnent
could, wthout a conpetitive process, purchase those private
services directly from another entity of governnment such as a

city entity, a borough, or the federal governnent, if that
government entity has put forward a conpetitive procurenent
process under its own procurenent code. Under [HB 498], he

noted, private prison services would be delivered through a
conpetitive process that is used at the | ocal governnent |evel.

Nunber 0336
MR. PREW TT explained that a di sadvantage to the state's putting
out an RFP to purchase those services directly is with regard to

the state's power of em nent domain. He clarified as foll ows:

The state can build a prison wherever it wants,
whenever it wants, and solicit a private conmpany to

manage it. The state can also solicit private
conpanies to find [real estate] to build a prison

and then buy the service from the provider. The
Arizona prison is owed and operated by the
Corrections Corporation of America. And while it's
prudent to involve the |local conmmunity, it's not
required. ... Al it takes is suitable zoning or [an]

unrestricted parcel of |and.

So, the public process that Whittier has gone through
is easily circunvented under the scenario of the state

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 5, 2002



going directly out to a conpetitive bid for a prison
All the contractor has to do is find an unrestricted
parcel of land or zoning and - bang! - you ve got a
pri son.

Nunmber 0456

MR PREWTT noted that as Mrgot Knuth had testified at the
previ ous hearing, the disadvantage to the process used in Delta,
Kenai, and Wi ttier is that the state does not control where the
prison is built, who builds it, or who operates it. Under the
Kenai legislation and the |egislation before the conmttee, he
said, the state doesn't have to contract for the service unless
the prison neets the Departnent of Corrections' standards and
conditions well| before construction. He continued:

Thr ough t he i nt ergover nnent al agr eenent that's
effected between the state and between the city, one
would think that those ... conditions that the
depart nment has - in terns of the quality of
construction and the types of services that are
delivered - would be nmde, or the state sinply

woul dn't go out and buy the service.

Under this process, which I think is ... a bit nore
advant ageous process, the clear advantage is that the
| ocal community has a choice in the matter. Most
comunities don't have a choice in the matter of where
a prison is |ocated. Kenai opted not to have one.
VWhittier has opted to have one if that's the w sh of
t he | egislature to provide the Depart ment of

Corrections that option.

MR. PREW TT said he has been com ng to Juneau for several years,

representing one of what he believes are tw "legitinate
approaches to the delivery of correctional services in this
state.” One is cost-intensive, whereas the other is cost-

effective; both satisfy correctional practices and can neet the
hi ghest standards of the industry.

Number 0625
MR. PREWTT noted that in the prior week, the adm nistration had
[ proposed] a plan that he believes represents the cost-intensive

approach to managi ng Alaska's prisons and jails. He referred to
a handout, which he highlighted page by page:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 5, 2002



As you can see by the first page of the handout, the
adm ni stration pr oposes to spread 1, 269 beds
t hroughout the state, at a total capital cost of $239
mllion. ... The other ... interesting information on
this summary is that there's a quote out of that plan
that says the state now has an overabundance of
medi um custody inmates; |'Il be addressing that later.

And on the next handout [page 2], you can see that the

VWhittier prison will add the sane nunber of beds in
one centralized facility for a total capital cost of
$110 mllion - $239 mllion [versus] $110 mllion.

Both the state and the Whittier beds are designed to
neet national and state standards.

So what accounts for the difference? The difference
can be sumred up in one sentence of the departnents in
that volunme, under the Yukon-Kuskokwi m Correctional

Center [YKCC]. 1In the plan that the state passed out,
under the YKCC ... , it says that "the additional 96
beds at Bet hel wi || allow the Yukon-Kuskokw m

Correctional Center to function as it was originally
intended, to serve the needs of the region's sentenced
def enders. "

The admnistration's plan provides prison and jail
services under one roof, and it intentionally avoids
econony of scale by duplicating prograns and services
t hroughout the state. It's an acceptable practice.
It's an expensive practice.

Jails are nmeant to hold prisoners, from arrest unti

sentencing - until sentencing. The m ssion of a jai
is "safe and secure confinenent” - no frills, no
prograns, just confinenent. That's what a jail does.

After sentencing, prisoners in other states are
transferred to central prisons to neet their security
and their program needs. And that can be for nany
years.

Toward the end of t hat sent ence, the offenders

hopeful |y will be returning cl oser to their
comunities, to ... pre-lease centers in the |ast year
or two  of confi nenent, to prepare them for
reintegration back into society. It's not the job of
a jail. The job of a prison is |ong-term confinenent
for sentenced offenders. So, in an ivory-towered

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 5, 2002



world where noney is no objective, there's nothing
wong with the admnistration's plan. ... It sinply
swns against what | believe is conventional and
af fordabl e correctional practice.

Nunmber 0803

MR PREWTT offered that effective prison progranms require
access to nental health, adult educational opportunities,
vocational training, and substance abuse resources; the latter
are limted in nost Alaskan comunities. Duplicating these
progranms in regional facilities throughout the state is not only
inefficient and cost-prohibitive, he said, but frequently cannot
be done at all because quality control and program continuity
are difficult to maintain in communities wthout those types of
resour ces. That, he explained, is why a larger facility nakes
sense.

MR PREWTT told the commttee it is nore efficient and
effective to have long-term sentenced prisoners in |arger
centralized prisons, near communities with Iiberal resources.
He noted that a 1,200-bed centralized prison in Al aska [would
be] nodest by national <correctional standards; nmany prisons
outside of Alaska are two to three tinmes that size. He pointed
out that Spring Creek [Correctional Facility], which is small by
t hose standards, has over 500 prisoners now - [less than] half
t he size.

Number 0910

MR. PREWTT noted that over the past seven years there has been
an inpasse created by this "philosophical, but very practical

very pragmatic difference of opinion by qualified corrections
providers,” which has resulted in the worst prison overcrowding
in the state's history. He drew attention to the third sheet of

the handout, titled, "Instate Innmate Count - Al aska Depart nent
of Corrections - February 2002," which he said is a prison
count . Every day of the year, he explained, the Departnent of
Corrections, under "the Cleary order,” is required to keep a
prison population count. He noted that the state has an
energency capacity and a maxi mum capacity. He said, "The red is
every day that one of these facilities - there's 15 state-
operated correctional facilities - has been over energency
capacity."” He added that when prisons are over capacity,

inmates and staff get hurt, for exanple.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 5, 2002



MR. PREWTT noted that the distinction [as shown in the chart]

bet ween nmaxi mum capacity and energency capacity "isn't very
much. " The nunbers show that the system is "maxed-out" and
overflow ng, he said. The state is nearly 200 beds over

energency capacity, not counting the 750 prisoners in Arizona.
He stated, "The question isn't whether the beds are needed. The
question is what kind of beds, and where."

Nunmber 1060

MR PREWTT noted that the departnent's plan shows that the
state currently has an overabundance of "nedi um custody"”
inmates, and it calls for adding 217 nediumsecurity beds to
Pal mer and 256 to Kenai. He said, "When the 750 prisoners are
factored into that demand, the state needs 1,223 nediumsecurity
beds and 'high-nmedium beds in order to return those prisoners
from Arizona.” This is the population targeted by the Wittier
facility and is classified by the departnent as "its greatest
need, " he said. M. Prewitt told the cormittee he believes the
departnent does need nore beds at other facilities, in other
regions around the state; however, "until jails are used as
jails and prisons are used as prisons, it's very difficult to
assess what regional need is.”

Number 1103

MR PREWTT pointed out that the one thing that can be
determned is cost. He said, "Under the plan that you were
given last week, the state will deliver 473 mediumsecurity beds
in Palnmer and Kenai ... at a total capital cost of $94.5
mllion." For roughly the sane noney, he noted, the Wittier
plan would deliver 1,200 beds - over twice as nany. He
continued, "The real difference is in conparing the conbined

capital and operating daily costs per bed at a state nedium
security facility versus a private nediumsecurity facility."

MR. PREWTT pointed to the handout titled "D fference Between
State and Wiittier Daily Costs Per Bed." He noted that the beds
proposed in Palnmer and Kenai, when conbined, have an average
daily operating cost of $98 per day, a figure that is the
institutional average, conbined with "other line itens that are
centralized in the departnent's accounting system - inmate
programnms, [adm nistration] and support, statewide and direct."”
He said if the $94 nillion is anortized over the 25 years
proposed under the Wittier legislation, there would be a
capital cost per bed of $36. The 473 state-proposed beds wll
cost the state $134 a day, per bed, whereas the Wittier prison

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 5, 2002



is capped by the legislature at an $89- to-$91-dollar rate,
which is the conbined operating and capital rate. He conti nued
as foll ows:

So a nmediumsecurity bed in Southcentral Al aska, at
VWhittier - which is no further away than Wasilla, from
a comuting standpoint, wth a tunnel that gives
access, in the sanme region as Palnmer and Kenai - costs
us roughly $90 a day per bed, conbined capital and
operating, versus $134. Over 25 years, the savings is
astronom cal

MR. PREWTT noted that M. Smth, who had testified at the
previ ous hearing, called the Wiittier plan a "welfare plan.” He
told the commttee that M. Smth lives in Kansas, serves on the
executive board of the retiree chapter of the Alaska State
Enpl oyees' Associ ation, has vigorously opposed privatization for

the last five years, and is entitled to his opinion. M.
Prewitt offered his own belief that the Wiittier prison plan "is
no welfare plan for Wiittier." He said the benefits would be

extreme for the entire state, and he noted that the handouts
show just sone of the benefits to the state.

Nunmber 1307

MR PREWTT offered that the Wittier plan would return $18
mllion a year to Al aska' s econony. He said, "If you take the
multiplier effect of that $18 mllion, it benefits all of
Al aska." He listed sonme other benefits related to this proposed
project: 325 union jobs, 228 indirect construction-related jobs
that provide services, and 225-275 permanent prison jobs. M.

Prewitt referred to criticism about the [pay] rates [heard at
the previous hearing]. He suggested that M. Webe could talk
about the budget that has been prepared by Cornell Conpanies.
He said, "These are sound, private-sector wages. These are not
hal f way- house, $8-an-hour jobs." He also said there would be
200 permanent, indirect jobs. He nmentioned purchases of goods,
materials, and services over 25 years from around the state. He
suggested it would be 35 percent less costly to build this
prison than to have "state-operated beds." It would mtigate
the state's liability for prison overcrowdi ng, he added.

MR PREWTT told the commttee that the departnent was rel eased
from C eary oversight - fromcourt oversight - about a year ago.
Before that time, he noted, there were sanctions accruing at
roughly $2 mllion a year. He continued as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 5, 2002



| don't know what the prisoners' attorneys are doing
about the situation that | just showed you. But you
can tell that if this is wirse than the conditions of
while we were under Ceary oversight, sonebody's got
to be looking at this. And | think the state is very,
very close to being ... sued once again, under
prisoners' rights action, for overcrowded conditions
of confinenent, not to say the liability of a staff or
an of fender being hurt under these conditions.

The Whittier plan returns Al aska prisoners closer
to rehabilitation sources and to their famlies. No,
it doesn't put them back next to their famlies if
they live in Bethel and None. I[t's not intended to.
O fenders with long sentences go back to their hone
communities for pre-release planning, to halfway
houses, to pre-release centers, where for a year or
two they're involved in comunity activities so that

they can transition. You don't open the door of a
prison and let a person just go back to the comunity
with $200 in their pocket. It doesn't work. They re-
of f end.

Nunber 1446

MR. PREWTT said this is the only plan with a focus on Al aska
Natives and that talks about offering prograns "for Natives, by

Natives.” He noted that there is a team ng agreenent with the
Al aska Native Brotherhood (ANB) and said "we've" been talking
with other corporate entities. He stated: "There's a sincere
commtnment on the part of the Gty of Wittier and on the part
of Cornell Conpanies - who operate these kind of prograns
Qutside - to team with the Alaska Native comunities to break

this horrible cycle of recidivism"™

MR. PREW TT noted that 37 percent of "our" prison population are
Al aska Native nen, although 7 percent of [Alaska's] general
popul ation consists of Alaska Native nen; he called [those

statistics] a "travesty." He added, "And | don't see anything
going on that's going to try to address that problem And
whether it's successful or not, that's another story." \Vs

Prewitt also offered his belief that only 6 or 7 percent of the
Depart nent of Corrections' correctional staff are Al aska
Nat i ves. He asked the conmttee [to consider what these
statistics nean].

Number 1540

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 5, 2002



MR PREWTT said this project would add value to a $90-million
tunnel that, when opened, "did the opposite of what the Cty of
Whittier expected it to do." He referred to previous testinony
by M. Butler, Myor of Wittier, regarding the skyrocketing of
sales taxes during the first year of the tunnel's operation and
the nonuse of the tunnel the following year when a toll was
char ged. He said the conmunity [of Whittier] desperately needs

an "anchor tenant" to stinulate its econony. He added, "They
don't have any other options, if you' ve ever been there.” He
said [Wittier] is wthin close proximty to Anchorage

therefore, the real beneficiary in terns of enployee hire and
t he purchase of goods and services, for exanple, would probably
be Anchorage and "comrunities in between." He reiterated that
this project would add value to the $90-million tunnel. He
suggested it would perhaps justify nore liberal access to Prince
W1 liam Sound.

Number 1600

CHAIR COGHI LL said [M. Prewitt's testinony] gave a balance to
sone of the testinony previously heard from the Departnent of
Corrections.

Nunmber 1616

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked how, if the [prison] is going to
be built [with union |abor], the large anount of projected
savings to the state is achievable while still getting a return
on investnent. He also inquired about the [projected rate of]
return on investnent.

MR. PREWTT deferred to M. W ebe.
Number 1700

MARVI N W EBE, Seni or Vice President, Cor nel | Conpani es,
testifying via teleconference, said he was not certain whether
Representative Crawford's question referred to the construction
phase and cost of the facility only, or whether it also
addressed issues of operation. Specific to the construction
issue and the use of wunion labor, he answered that private
operators |look at making the prison as efficient as possible

because every square foot costs noney.

MR. WEBE noted that he had seen sone projections fromthe State
of Alaska wth estimates as high as 435 square feet per

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 5, 2002



prisoner, for exanple. He remarked, "In our world, which is the
world of the Anmerican Correctional Association [ACC] and the
standards that are set by the [ACC] at the national |evel, those
kinds of footages are higher than we need to operate our

prisons."” He said it is not atypical for [ACC] to operate
medi um security beds in a facility that has footages of 220-250
square feet. He nmentioned one of [ACC s] facilities that has

175 square feet per inmate that, while tight, has operated
efficiently for many years. He added that it was not a facility
that "we" designed and built.

MR. WEBE said there are economes of scale associated wth
constructing one large facility at one site, as opposed to
constructing several facilities to achieve 1,200 beds across the
state. He also said there are a variety of other factors
regardi ng [cost efficiency] in construction techniques.

Nunmber 1830

MR. PREWTT replied, "The short answer, on the operating side,
is there is no intention to pay starting correctional officers
the wage and benefits of starting correctional officers for the
State of Alaska, so there are cost savings there.” He added
that it doesn't nean substandard wages would be paid. He asked
M. Webe what the starting hourly [wage] is for a corrections
officer with acadeny training but no experience in the field.

Nunmber 1865

MR. WEBE responded that there are a variety of wages for those
who have already net the training requirenent. Those
requi renents are equivalent to those for the State of Al aska and
are higher than the national averages and certainly higher than
the mninuns required by the ACC Wth respect to wages, he
noted that the pay range, depending upon experience, would be
$13.50 to $16.34 an hour, with an average estinmated starting pay
of alittle over $14.00 per hour.

Number 1930

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD nentioned health and retirenent benefits
[for Cornell Conpanies].

Number 1940

MR. WEBE explained that the benefit package is "pretty nuch"
standardi zed, with slight variations from state to state. On

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 5, 2002



bal ance, he said, [Cornell Conpanies'] benefits match those of
the private-sector industries around the country such as |BM
He noted that [Cornell Conpanies] provides a very good health
package for its enployees and their famlies; the portion paid
for by the enployee is a relatively small anount per nonth, and
the portion the enployee pays toward famly coverage is "very
| ow," he said. He indicated that a |large anount, close to $500
per nmonth, is paid by the conpany. The reason for that, he
expl ained, is that the conpany wants famlies of enployees to be
insured with "those kinds of benefits.”

MR. WEBE said the conpany has a different holiday and vacation
package that it "just rolled out.”™ The nunber of days off per
year varies with the enployee' s experience; typically, however,
the enpl oyee receives a mninmm of tw weeks' vacation for the
first year, as well as 10 or 11 paid holidays, depending on the
jurisdiction. M. Webe also said the conpany provides a sick-
day policy and sick |eave, covers pay during unlimted jury
duty, and a has a good package for those with conmtnents to the
Nat i onal Guard.

MR WEBE noted that typically in the private sector, 401(k)

plans are currently being utilized; enployees can enroll in
those plans within one year of enploynent, which allows themto
defer part of their [nonetary] conpensation. In addition, he

said, there is a conpany match equivalent to 50 percent of the
first 6 percent of contribution on an enployee's wages.
Furthernore, the conpany issues stock options periodically,
based on performance for enployees, and other incentive
pr ogr ans.

MR. PRUTT offered his wunderstanding that the value of the
package is 28 percent, on top of the wage.

MR W EBE concurr ed.

Nunber 2082

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD reiterated his question regarding the
expected return on the investnent. He also nentioned a story
that Cornell [Conpanies] had had trouble with its accounting
practices, simlar to those experienced by Enron. He asked

where [the State of Alaska] would be left in this process, if at
sone point in the future Cornell Conpanies went out of business.

MR. WEBE replied as follows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 5, 2002



Let me nake a couple of coments about the issue of
the accounting discussion. I'"'m probably, as an
officer of the conpany, not at liberty to say a |ot,
because there's <clearly sone additional audi ting
that's going on, and that was asked for by our board
of directors just to nmake sure that we are on
sound ground.

But, clearly, these were audit decisions that were
made in concert with our auditors at the tinme and with
revi ews by t he SEC [Securities and Exchange

Commi ssion]. W've gone into a climate in our country
- and probably a very healthy climte - where we're
| ooking at - not just with Cornell and not just wth
Enron, but really many, many conpanies - ... a variety
of accounting transactions, many of which were
probably aggressive - and |I'm not characterizing ours
in that way, at all. But they were a function of the
time and this belief that that was [an] acceptable
practice.

| think, generally, the standards in accounting are
going to becone nore rigid, and we're certainly going
to see ... transactions accounted for differently in
the future

W're confident that we're on sound ground wth
respect to the accounting transaction that's being
reviewed right now, and so we're confortable with the

out cone. But, nonetheless, Cornell is a strong
conpany. Even if we restated earnings at sone |evel
currently we're sitting on, | think, about $80 mllion

in cash that we are planning to use in investnents,
such as this facility in its operation, and to have
reserves sufficient to take care of our business.

Nunber 2190

W're a strong conpany with a long history. Many of
the elenents of our conpany go back as far as 1973 and

shortly thereafter. This is a conpany wth
prograns that have operated well for many, nany, nany
years, and we expect that continuity to continue.

Wth respect to the potential or the possibility that

there could be a collapse of any conpany, for that
matter, as a private operator, there are provisions in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 5, 2002



the contracting agreenment with the Cty of Wittier

and Cornell ... which will be, I'm sure, dealt wth
and addressed in the ... agreenent between the
Department of Corrections in Alaska and the Cty of
VWhittier. Wth respect to bringing in replacenent
operators or, in energencies, perhaps even having the
state take over the facility, if that were the

choosing or decision of the state to do that.

But, clearly, there are nmany conpetitive operators out
there who are able to step up and operate these
facilities, and so there's a way for these contracts
to be (indisc.) and others to step in and operate if a
private operator is preferred to cone in and operate
the facility, in the case of a coll apse. That seens
unlikely, given the assets of the conmpany and the
strength and history of the conpany, but that would be
nmy response on that specific issue.

Nunber 2265

MR WEBE responded to Representative Crawford's question
regarding the return on investnent (RO) by saying he didn't

know that. He said he had worked for years on bids, but no
| onger does; he added, "Qur ROs were estimted to be about 3
percent.”" He said he is not currently |ooking at those nunbers
on the project, partly because the conmpany is still working on
the nunbers. He explained that this process is atypical,
al though not wunusual, in that it begins wth a cap - for
i nstance, the conpany's $89-%91 cap - and works backward into
the conpany's nunbers in order to determne feasibility. He
said a variety of issues are still being addressed; however, the

conpany would not be noving ahead on this project if it didn't
think it was feasible.

MR, WEBE said it is difficult to estimte what the nmargins wl|l

be. Referring to nention that quality staff may not be
attracted by wages |ower than those paid by the state, he said,
"Qur experience has not been that." If, hypothetically, that

were the case, he said, [Cornell Conpanies] would expect to pay
what ever wages were needed to ensure that the facility was run
properly. "That would be within the $89-%$91 cap," he added. He
reiterated that it is difficult to predict what the conpany's
return will be.

Nunmber 2383

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 5, 2002



VI CTOR WELLINGION, Sr., Myor, Metlakatla Indian Community,
testifying via teleconference, pointed out that Mtlakatla also
is interested in having a prison and is working very hard on
putting a package together to bring to the state. He added
"And the funding would be on our side."

Nunber 2450

ELSI E HENDRI X, Vice President, Kenai Native Association,
testified via teleconference on behalf of the Wiittier private
pri son. She said her prinme interest is in bringing Alaska's
Native people back to their state. She opined that Wittier
woul d be a good |ocation; because it is close to Anchorage, it
woul d cut down on transportation costs. [ The prisoners] would
al so be closer to their famlies, and she suggested it would be
a benefit in their treatnent prograns.

Number 2500

JAMES PRICE, testifying via teleconference as a private citizen,
told the commttee he was fornerly the chairman of Peninsula
Citizens Against Private Prisons, the organization that fought
to bring the prison issue in Kenai up for a vote of the people.
He noted that every tinme a community [in Alaska] has voted on
having a private prison, it has been soundly defeated, by about
3-1. Most of the tinme, he said, when people have really taken a
|l ook at a privately operated public facility, they have "chosen
not to desire this type of an arrangenent.”

MR PRICE said he really feels that having a private operator

doing a job traditionally done by the state is a m stake. He
offered his belief that "a lot of history" shows that this type
of arrangement is not beneficial to the people of Al aska. He

encouraged the commttee to |ook at what has happened in other
communities and what the public sentinent is towards this type
of an arrangenent. M. Price clarified that he strongly opposes
any publicly funded private prison, anywhere in Al aska.

Number 2596

VALERI E McCANDLESS, testifying via teleconference as a private
citizen from Wangell, told nmenbers she would prefer that there
not be private prisons within the state. She said she believes
this is an arrangenent that wll cost the state nobre in its
resources and, ultimately, its tax dollars. She noted that

[ Wangel | ' s] Representative Peggy WIson has had public neetings
to discuss the shortfalls of the state budget and possible

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 5, 2002



solutions such as "dipping into the permanent fund" and
establishing a state incone tax. The latter, she said, would
nmean that people throughout the state would be supporting the
privately run [Whittier prison].

M5. MCANDLESS noted that the community of Wangell recently
held a special election regarding the prison issue; it was voted
down by over 70 percent. She said this was an issue that the
city council had al nost noved forward on, without a vote of the
people. She referred to the testinony of M. Prewitt that it is
prudent, but not required, to involve the local conmunity. She
said she thinks it is instructive that when other conmunities
have studied the issue and had the opportunity to vote, the
peopl e have overwhel m ngly voted against this. She suggested
there should be "an educational opportunity” and a feasibility
study before any decision is nade.

Nunmber 2689

SHARI M ETHE, testifying via teleconference as a private
citizen, told the commttee she is opposed to the privatization
of prisons in Alaska. She asked perm ssion to read her witten
testinmony, which she estimated to be 2.5 mnutes in | ength.

CHAIR COGHILL asked Ms. Methe to summarize her testinony and
fax the full text to the commttee.

M5. M ETHE presented her testinony as foll ows:

The process generated froma private prison located in

VWhittier wll primarily go to the Houston, Texas-based
prison corporation, Cornell, and its stockhol ders.
Taxpayers in the State of Alaska will have to fund it

to the tune of a mninum of $40 mllion per year, for
25 years, according to HB 498.

Representative Peggy WIson reported in the Wangel
Sentinel of February 28, 2002, that the State of
Al aska has "three pots of nobney or accounts" that the
state draws fromto pay its bills: the constitutiona
budget reserve [CBR], which serves as a shock absorber
for the state general fund, and the earnings reserve
account [ERA], where the permanent fund [dividend] is
| ocated. And she stated that the CBR only has enough
funds in it for another two years, and that if we
don't close the fiscal gap, the ERA or permanent fund
account will be the next pot that's dipped into.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 5, 2002



[ Representative W/ son] had further stated that
Al askans have only three choices to choose from in
resolving our fiscal problem or gap. And one choice
would be to cut progranms statewide. And |'m quoting:
"It seens to ne a greater fiscal responsibility would
be gained by not initiating projects that will incur a
m ni mum yearly cost of $40 mllion."

And it seens that if we're so eager to spend this

additional $40 mllion a year, 1'd like to see us | ook
to the needs of Alaskan comunities and keep the
revenue in our state - like senior health care, port
expansi on, fisheries enhancenent , j ob pl acenent

services, et cetera, et cetera. The list is endl ess.

My question is this: How does the state justify
| egislating another multimllion-dollar project while
we're seeking ways to save nobney, generate revenue,
and close the fiscal gap?

M5. M ETHE nentioned SB 336, which she said would allow for the
expansion of existing public prison facilities and would make
the private prison investnent a [noot] point. She said she does
not want the legislature to enact further legislation that wll
i ncur |ong-range expense and export mllions of dollars out of
state, while becom ng another case of poor fiscal budgeting that
will ultimately cost Alaskan citizens their permanent fund
[ di vi dend] revenues, "and nmuch nore."

Nunber 2840

KEVI N WYATT, testifying via teleconference as a private citizen,
told the conmttee that "the private-versus-public debate" was
hashed out extensively on the Kenai Peninsula, and "once again,
when the people voted, ... | think it was a 3-1 thing." He
offered his belief that it is a fundanental responsibility of
state governnment to incarcerate and rehabilitate people who
break the |law. He spoke against shirking this responsibility by
including third-party [contractors] in carrying out t he
responsibility.

MR WYATT, in regard to |[HB 498], suggested deleting the

| anguage "third-party operator[s]”. He expl ai ned:
| just think it has no place in the ... debate of the
good of the public. ... | appreciate the work you guys

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 5, 2002



do, and | also support both the admnistration and
both House bills comng out that have a very cost-
effective plan to just add to existing state
facilities.

Nunber 2916

M KE YOURKOWSKI, City Council Menber, City of Honer, testifying
via teleconference, nentioned making certain that all the
state's costs are included, anong them the transportation of
prisoners, nedical costs, and court-ordered prograns. Havi ng
| ooked briefly at the fiscal note, M. Yourkowski said he hopes
there will be a nore conpetent analysis. He opined that "we
shoul d be throw ng our weight behind SB 261 or HB 388," which he
believes would do a nuch better job of keeping prisoners in
their communities. He suggested that rehabilitation should cone
first, and profits should not be a consideration when | ooking at
the wel fare of [Al aska's] prisoners.

CHAIR COGHI LL responded that the fiscal notes would be
scrutini zed.

Number 2990

GEORGE AVI LA, testifying via teleconference, told the commttee
that although he was a correctional officer for the Departnent
of Corrections, he was speaking as a private citizen.

TAPE 02-22, SIDE B
Number 2990

MR  AVILA noted that currently there is a shortage of
correctional officers, and he indicated that a 350-bed facility
is being opened in Anchorage, which [the departnent] nust
endeavor to staff along with its existing facilities. He stated
that it would be an incredible stretch for the Departnent of
Corrections to take over a 1,200-bed facility now, or in the
future, without pre-planning and hiring [in] stages. M. Avila
said he doesn't think it is sound resource managenent to build a
facility in Wittier and expect that people from Fairbanks,
which is on the road system wuld go there [for famly
visitation].

MR. AVILA nentioned SB 231 and the governor's bill, [SB] 336

He noted that both would allow expansion of facilities around

the state, which would allow famlies "better access to their
pri soners when they come back."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 5, 2002



Number 2932

JIM LECRONE, Retired Corrections Sergeant; Retired A r Force
Pilot and Parachutist, testifying via teleconference, told the
commttee he has spent nuch of his life planning ahead for
ener genci es. He expressed concern that if there were a tsunam
warning in the Whittier area, for exanple, either 1,200 inmates
woul d have to be noved or the decision not to nove them would
have to be nuade. Moving 1,200 inmates wthout transport-
qualified staff is inpossible, he said; the endeavor would
require thirty 40-person buses, 1,200 sets of handcuffs, and
1,200 sets of leg irons, for exanple. He said it isn't
f easi bl e.

MR. LECROWNE indicated an opportunity in "the other bills" to

i npact nunmerous regions and conmunities, not just one. He
referred to the testinony of M. Prewtt wth regard to
generating $18 nmillion a year for the Alaskan econony. He

pointed out that it would be generated regardl ess of whether
[the prison] is built in Wiittier or sonmewhere el se.

MR. LECRONE offered that it is a fallacy to consider Al askan
inmates to be closer to honme in Wittier than they would be in
many other localities. He concluded by saying, "I'm against it.
And, at the very |east, you should 1look at increased
construction costs in Wittier to withstand an aval anche and
tsunam . "

Number 2852

LEONARD JONES, Director of Public Facilities, Gty of Wittier,
testifying via teleconference, referred to a two-page letter
he'd faxed to the commttee; he offered a synopsis. An Al askan
resident for 33 years, M. Jones said he was a corrections
prof essional for the Departnent of Corrections for 28 years; he
was a contract admnistrator, at the executive l|level, for the
ten community residential centers or halfway houses operated
t hroughout the state. He'd resigned on Novenber 16 [2001],
however, and had gone to work for the Gty of Wittier.

MR JONES told nenbers he has seen a need for effective
programm ng and Native cultural prograns for offenders, and has
hel ped to devel op those prograns in Nonme, Barrow, and Southeast
[ Al aska] . He nentioned the vision for the Departnent of
Corrections and read from his witten testinony, which stated:
"To be partners with the public in the delivery of a continuum

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 5, 2002



of correctional services with integrity and a conmmtnment to
excel I ence. " He said he wouldn't read the m ssion statenent,
but has |earned over the last 90 days that "the Gty of Wittier
is prepared to work with the Departnment of Corrections to
develop fully and conpletely this sanme mssion and vision
concerning ... the return of prisoners to Al aska." He stated
his full support of this concept and said he believes it is
inportant to bring [Alaska' s] prisoners hone, sonewhere within
the state.

Number 2769

MR JONES referred to testinony the previous week from a
gentl eman from Homer who suggested that "famly [nmenbers], |oved
ones, and others who may visit this prison site are 'not the
ki nd of people you want in your community.'"™ M. Jones recalled
that the testifier had spoken of increased crine and negative
i deations that would be caused by having these people visiting
prisoners. M. Jones enphasized that he disagreed, because each

pri soner incarcerated, whether in Arizona or Alaska, "is soneday
going to be released and is going to conme back and be your
nei ghbor . " He nentioned effective programmng and Cornel

[ Conpani es], suggesting that wth sonme oversight from the city,
the needs of the state and all Al askan citizens can be net.

Nunmber 2665

DAVI D KATZEEK, Juneau Al aska Native Brotherhood (ANB) Canp 2,
began his testinony [interspersing short segnents spoken in
Tlingit] as foll ows:

My Tlingit nanme is "King-gees-teh" (ph). ... | want
to express ny appreciation for giving nme this
opportunity to present to you our position. Noble and
honor abl e people of the land - ... this is the way the
Tlingit culture has always been regarding our people,
or any people, that we |ook at them as nobl e people.
W don't classify them as crimnals. W don't
classify them as bad people. W look at them for who
they are, and we work with themin a way that brings
back an i ndividual who may have violated sone
boundaries and things of that nature.

And to me, when you're talking finances and so forth,
| think you're rightly tal king about the right thing.
But ... how nmuch can you put on a child who sees his
dad come out of prison and is rehabilitated and is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 5, 2002



restored, and conmes back into the community when, one,
the public is safe; twd, ... the recidivismrate is
reduced; and three, that individual is rehabilitated
and is contributing to the comunity.

W ook at it as an opportunity - from nme, from the
Al aska Native Brotherhood, Canp Il - that there's an
opportunity in private prisons to be able to do the
kind of things that would help restore our people. It

isn't whether you're spending mllions and mllions of
dollars, but it's saving noney if you develop a
program ... whether it's a state prison or within the

structure of a private prison. And we favor the
private prison, because we understand sone of the
types of things: there are special-interest-type
groups that are happening here. And we're talking
economi cs.

But I want to bring to your attention that we need to
address the issue with respect to broken honmes and
broken hearts and broken spirits. How nmuch noney can
you put on that? And so, | just say to you that we
support bringing back our famlies together - not from
down [in] Arizona, but from Juneau, from Hoonah, from
Yakutat, from Metlakatla, and Sitka - to bring them
together back as a famly. ... That's the way it was
al ways, with your famlies and our famlies, across
this world.

MR. KATZEEK concluded by saying 96 percent of individuals who
re-of fend use alcohol. Many are incarcerated in Arizona, which
he opined, is no different from the [detention, after the
terrorist attacks on Septenber 11, 2001, of purported nenbers
of] Al Qaeda at Guantananp Bay. He urged the commttee, when
t hi nking about noney, to include other values that have a
positive inpact "for all of us, as a people.™

Number 2470

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyist for AFL-CIO [Anerican Federation of
Labor and Congress of Industrial Organizations], testified on
behal f of the public enployees sector of the AFL-Cl O He said
"We oppose it for many, many of the reasons you already heard.”
He stated support for expansion of existing facilities, which
woul d allow [prisoners] far away from hone to be closer to where
they canme from Referring to testinony during a prior hearing
on HB 498, when a testifier commented that "it wasn't heard in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 5, 2002



Juneau,"” M. Etheridge said "it" has been heard in Juneau, just
not in the capitol. He noted that the | ocal assenbly had passed
a resolution in support of the expansion of the existing
facilities.

Nunber 2400

CHARLES CAMPBELL cane forward to testify. A resident of Juneau,
he told the commttee that he cane to Juneau 22 years ago as
"Director of Corrections in Al aska." He indicated he'd also
served for two and one half years as [a nonitor] for Ceary [a
| egal case that had been settled pertaining to prisoners

rights]. Beginning in 1950, he said, he'd filled a wide variety
of roles and worked in seven different federal prisons.

MR. CAMPBELL said he loves [Alaska] and wants the state to have
a good corrections program He assured the conmittee that the
proposal in [HB 498] is not a tenable one; it would not allow
Al aska to continue to have its currently good correction system
He noted that [Alaska] is one of the few states that continues
to have "a reasonably good correctional program despite ... its

limted resources.” He remarked, "Frank Prewitt is
certainly right in saying that there are states down south that
have prisons with three and four tines as nany beds as
anticipated in this plan. They've had to throw ... in the
sponge. "

MR. CAMPBELL offered that a 1,200-bed prison in Wittier would
not be much of an inprovenent over [the facility located in]
Fl orence, Arizona, as far as accessibility to famlies is
concer ned. The only way a 1,200-bed prison could work, he
opined, is by way of a unit system whereby the prison is divided
into perhaps four or five separate units, each individually

staffed and progranmed. He suggested that would be inpossible
for Cornell Conpanies to do, however, because of cost
consi derati ons. Wth 1,200 beds, he said, prisoners begin to

have nore influence than staff over what happens at the prison.

MR. CAMPBELL referred to previous coments by M. Prewtt
regarding community resources. He stated that community
resources are enornously inportant to a good prison. He told
the conmttee that it is inportant to remenber that the Al aska
State Constitution requires that correctional admnistration be

based on principles of refornmation. Whittier, he said, would
not be able to provide, even renotely, the types of community
resources that are needed. He clarified that he was not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 5, 2002



referring to contractual resources and said, "a good volunteer
cadre is essential to a good program"”

MR. CAMPBELL said he sees no possibility of [a facility in

Whittier] being staffed; there is still a deficit of officers at
Spring Creek [Correctional Center] who don't have to commute.
Cornell proposes to pay less noney, wth a less favorable

package, he said, adding that the |eadership of the facility is
in question because it has "an inescapable conflict of

interest.” Calling [HB 498] an "atrocious bill," M. Canpbell
concl uded by expressing confidence that the prison will never be
built but that the bill wll be noved forward, causing a |ong

delay in addressing the serious problem of having 800 prisoners
in Arizona.

Nunber 2119

CHAI R COGHI LL cl osed public testinony. He indicated there were
many questions regarding the bill - philosophical, practical,
| egal, contractual, and economcal. He offered his intention of

l etting the House Finance Conm ttee address econom c issues. He
indicated the current conmittee needed to consider the policy
decision regarding a city's asking [the legislature] to do "an
aut hori zation for contracts on private corrections.”

Nunber 2062

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES conmmented on the sincerity of the
testifiers, but indicated she didn't share the concerns. In
regard to M. Canpbell's l|ast conment, she said, "W don't nake
it happen; we only allow it." She nentioned the proposal for
Kenai and the Al aska Native participation. She said she thinks
it is worth the chance to go ahead with this. She concl uded

that she was happy with the | egislation and woul d support it.

Number 1998

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noted that other comunities are interested
in [a prison as well]. In addition, while [M. Katzeek's]
testinmony cited the Tlingit culture, people from other cultures
are in prisons across the state. He questioned whether the
Al aska Native Brotherhood [nenbers] would take up permanent
residence [in Wittier] or would have to conmute. He said he

was concerned about visitation to such a renote area because it
is a mgjor factor in rehabilitation "for friends and rel atives
to cone and reinforce those inmtes," especially in the "nmedi unf
facilities. He noted that he has seen this firsthand.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 5, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he was questioning the choice of a
private prison when the state did not cone out with a request
for proposals to find out if any other conmmunities were
interested in the prison or to see what private contractors were
avai |l abl e. He said he needed answers to questions before he
woul d vote for a city that he wasn't sure had the infrastructure
to provide the type of facility that "we" want.

Nunber 1845

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD voiced concern that 1,200 beds is two
and one half tinmes [the size] of any facility currently in the
state. He said he believed [building this prison in Wittier]
woul d "preclude us from constructing any other facilities in the
state over the next 25 years." He explained that he is
concerned about having "one nonolithic structure” in Wittier
when there are needs and concerns all over the state. He said
he favors a regional approach to this, and although there are
sone economes of scale, [the commttee] should be concerned
with rehabilitating [prisoners] to re-enter society. He
concluded that this [legislation] would be a bad idea.

Nunber 1765

CHAI R COCGHI LL announced that HB 498 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ QURNMENT

Nunber 1728

The House State Affairs Standing Committee took a brief at-ease
to prepare for the overview regarding actuarials and the

Division of Retirenent and Benefits. [For the overview, see the
9:25 a.m mnutes for this date.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 5, 2002



